
Meeting Minutes
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Tuesday, June 5th, 2018.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Loretta Taylor, Chairperson presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member



Steven Kessler, Board Member




Robert Foley, Board Member 

Jeff Rothfeder, Board Member

Peter Daly, Board Member 

George Kimmerling, Board Member


ALSO PRESENT:




Thomas Wood, Esq., Town Attorney

Michael Cunningham, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney 
 



Michael Preziosi, Deputy Director, DOTS



Chris Kehoe, Deputy Director for Planning
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated Mike and I have nameplates but also here is Michael Cunningham, our newly retained town attorney.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I ask if he would like to introduce our new attorney.

Mr. Tom Wood stated as Chris said, Town Board has selected Mr. Cunningham to serve as the assistant town attorney. So as much as I’ve enjoyed visiting with you for the last few months, after this month, he’ll be sitting in this seat. Any file that he may have a conflict on because of his prior employment I would still come back and make guest appearances. We’re very happy. The Town Board spent many months interviewing, an applicant was selected so I think we should all be pleased that he will be with us. We welcome him.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I did already speak with Michael and I again, welcome you to the board. You’re not entirely unfamiliar with us. We’re happy to have you.

Mr. Michael Cunningham stated thank you. I’m looking forward to working with everyone.



*



*



*
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated tonight, we will have an addition to our agenda. It will be PB 2018-6, the application for the Sentinel, an assisted living facility. That will come later on in the agenda. May have someone who will please…
So moved, seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 



*



*



*
ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF MAY 1, 2018 
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked the adoption of the minutes, please?
So moved, seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 



*



*



*
CORRESPONDENCE:

PB 13-05    a.
Letter dated May 15, 2018 from Brad Schwartz, Esq. requesting the 8th 90-day time extension of Final Plat approval for the Mill Court Crossing Subdivision located at the south end of Mill Court.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chair I move that we adopt Resolution 14-18 approving the 90-day extension.
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

PB 9-99      b.
Letter dated May 23, 2018 from Linda Whitehead, Esq. requesting the 27th 90-day time extension of Final Plat approval for the Furnace Dock Inc. Subdivision located on Furnace Dock Road.

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we adopt Resolution 15-18 in favor of granting them two 90-day time extensions.
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we granted them double the time that they asked for simply because we have been having a situation there that probably will be done by the end of the second 90-day time extension. So we decided, instead of having them come back before the board that we would just go ahead and give them a second one and hopefully this will be done by the second one has expired.



*



*



*
RESOLUTION:

PB 2017-6  a.
Application of Meenan Oil Company, Inc. for Site Development Plan approval for the reconstruction of an existing garage located on an approximately 7.7 acre parcel of property at 26 Bay View Road as shown on a 3 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan for Meenan Oil Co.” prepared by Ralph Mastromonaco, P.E. latest revision dated February 16, 2018 and on a 4 page set of elevations and floor plans entitled “Renovations & Alterations to Meenan Oil, L.P” prepared by Philip H. Cerrone, III, AIA dated February 7, 2018.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated good evening. Ms. Chairman I did get a copy of the proposed resolution and I have two items I’d like to discuss. Item 4.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked you’re talking on the conditions?

Mr. Robert Foley asked which number?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded 4. Yes, on item 4.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked regarding the certificate of occupancy, is that what we’re talking about?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded yes, essentially the condition asks us to remove, of course, some trucks that are parked on the Metro North property, the small strip of property. The site plan says we’re going to do that, but the problem we have is that it seems to say we’re going to do some work on that property by restoring a gravel parking lot in accordance with some uncertain standards in a New York Erosion Sediment Control manual. I think it’s sufficient that we’re removing anything that the company has parked their trucks in a little storage shed. We’re showing a place on our site plan where it’s going to go, and not only that, we’re putting a six-foot chain link fence between our property and their property. I would prefer if we didn’t word this such that I had to go back and do any work on somebody else’s property.

Mr. Tom Wood stated but you’ve been utilizing the property.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco asked pardon me?

Mr. Tom Wood responded you’ve utilized the property without their consent, now you’re leery of doing anything on it because you don’t have their consent.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated well it’s one thing to park a truck on something, another thing to go in and start re-grading the property…

Mr. Tom Wood stated no, I think the intent here was not to leave any disturbed earth. So if there’s dirt, you might have to put some seed, something like that just to stabilize it. You don’t have to take out any of the blacktop, things like that.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated there’s trailers on non-paved surfaces. So the intent is to restore any disturbed soils with stabilization: topsoil, seed and hay and leave it to the recommended standards of the New York State Erosion Sedimentation Control manual. That’s why we put it as a condition of the certificate of occupancy because it’ll need to be done in the future. It can’t be done now.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated I do have a photograph of that area. Can I just show it to the board? Pass it along? I circled the area and it just shows…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated Ralph, staff has obviously visited the site and seen what they needed to see in order to make this request that you do this, or this condition that you do it. I’m not certain -- your point-of-view is that there should be some level of restoration?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded as Mr. Wood had stated, there’s been use of the property that’s not of Meenan Oil’s and we just want to make sure that once the material is removed from the site, it’s properly stabilized before a CO is issued.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked what work was done on that property in addition to putting the trailers there Ralph?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded nothing. It’s just trucks are parked there if you see the picture.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I see the trucks, but did you do anything to the property before you put the truck there?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded no, 50 years ago who knows? I don’t know.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated let’s say you parked the trucks and they’ve just been sitting there. Over a period of time, after rains and snows and whatever the soil does become somewhat disturbed so maybe what you need to do is just go back and smooth it over. I don’t know what you have to do but just to make it more presentable after you’ve pulled out your trailers. You don’t want to leave it disturbed and messy.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated in a sense I don’t disagree with you, however, with the way the condition is written, it asks me to restore disturbed non-stabilized soil areas. That’s work. I don’t think we need to do any work there. It’s a gravel; hard-packed gravel parking lot. And we’ve already said we’re going to put a chain link fence and we’re going to remove any pieces of equipment that are on there. We’re not going to park there anymore.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked so you’re saying it’s not their work on soil?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded it’s all gravel, hard-packed ground.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked so you don’t have to do anything.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated that’s exactly right, we don’t. That’s why the condition shouldn’t be in there. 
Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked why do you care if the condition is in there?

I’ll tell you exactly why. Because these are the types of conditions that when we get down to the CO becomes parts of argument with the town.

Mr. Tom Wood stated why don’t we propose this, maybe we can propose, we’ll put over the adoption resolution to the next month. Your client move all of the equipment out of the area, stake it so we know where the area is and then if it’s in a satisfactory state, the staff can recommend to the board that the condition be deleted.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated that’s okay with us, yes. But we have to make sure that somebody from the town gets out there and sees it before the next meeting.

Mr. Tom Wood stated well if you do it two days before the next meeting, I’m sure it can be done.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated I would be fine with that. We can have our inspectors go out there and confirm that. At the same time I’d request the property line is field staked as well by a licensed surveyor and the fence installed as well.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated if they need to do something, you should point to the exact standards in the manuals so he knows what he needs to do.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated will do.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated my second comment, I wrote to the town and I sent another email to Chris this morning about condition 5. Chris, did you happen to see that?
Mr. Michael Preziosi responded we saw it Ralph. I will recommend that condition 5 be modified from stating to: “the applicant shall obtain the required coverage under the SPDES multi-sector general permit” to state that “the applicant shall submit a copy of the SPDES multi-sector general permit prior to the issuance of the…”

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated they don’t need a multi-sector permit because there’s only one operation on the site but they do have SPDES permit.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated so reword it for you to submit a copy of the SPDES permit prior to the issuance of the building permit.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated it’s in my file, okay. Other than that, we’ll be back next month.

Mr. Robert Foley asked I’ll make a motion just to refer back?
Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes, please.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion to refer this back to July.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just to confirm that you continue to consent of the extension of the 62-day clock.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded yes, we extend to the next meeting. Yes, Chris.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 


*



*



*
OLD BUSINESS:

PB 2018-2  a.
Application of New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC (AT&T) for the recertification of the Special Permit for an existing cell tower located at 451 Yorktown Road (Route 129) as required by Section 277-18 of the Town of Cortlandt Code and as described in a letter and packet dated February 21, 2018 from Anthony Gioffre, III. and as shown on an 11 page set of drawings entitled “As Built Drawings, Hunters Brook Site Number NYCNNY5526” prepared by Nicholas Barile, P.E. dated May 22, 2018. (see prior PB 2017-20)
Mr. Anthony Gioffre stated thank you Madame Chair, members of the board, for the record my name is Tony Gioffre. I’m a member of the law firm Cuddy & Feder, 445 Hamilton Avenue, White Plains, N.Y. here on behalf of the applicant New Cingular Wireless PCS, otherwise known as AT&T Wireless. This application seeks a recertification of the special permit that was previously granted by the Zoning Board of Appeals. We’ve submitted documentation to reflect the fact that there’s been no modifications since the last Zoning Board approval of this matter. There’s an existing 140 foot tower with 9 panel antennas with an at-grade fence compound that houses AT&T’s associated wireless equipment. There’s been no modifications to the facilities I’ve indicated and we’re merely seeking a recertification.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked staff, do you have any issues that you want to bring up at this point? I’m pretty sure the board doesn’t.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we created a resolution of approval and there was some back-and-forth. The applicant has a copy of the resolution. I worked with the town engineer. Most of the comments, all of the conditions have to do more with internal building department procedures and permits.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated as he said, we do have a resolution for you and if there’s nothing they care to say, we can go ahead and do that please for me.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated Madame Chair I’ll move that we adopt Resolution 16-18 to grant the five year renewal for this tower, recertification.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Anthony Gioffre stated thank you very much and thank you to staff.
PB 2018-1   b.
Application of Sustainable Materials Management, Inc. for Site Development Plan approval and a Tree Removal Permit for an organic composting facility to be located on a portion of property currently occupied by CRP Sanitation located at 2 Bayview Road as shown on a 5 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan” prepared by Cronin Engineering, P.E., P.C. latest revision dated May 23, 2018.

Mr. Jim Annichiarico good evening Madame Chair and members of the board. I’m Jim Annichiarico from Cronin Engineering representing Sustainable Materials Management, Inc. This past Sunday we had the site walk with the majority of the members of the board. Answered a lot of questions I believe. Everybody got a chance to see exactly where, on the facility or on the property the facility would be located. It was a beautiful day. I also submitted, prior to the deadline for the meeting, a revised set of plans and a cover letter that addressed some of the comments that I received at the last meeting from the board as well as the comments that I received from Code Enforcement which mainly pertained to fire safety and fire access. It’s my understanding that Code Enforcement has not gotten the chance to review the revised plans before the meeting but they will do so before the next meeting. As I said, I believe we addressed most of the comments and the concerns. Tonight I would be happy to answer any other comments or anymore questions and we would also respectfully request that the board set a public hearing for the project at the next meeting.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked do we have any questions or comments from the board?

Mr. George Kimmerling stated I did have a question related to the site visit which was great and thank you for being there on Sunday morning. The driveway that will be accessed by commercial haulers, or whatever they’re called, to me, not being a truck driver, the placement of that gas tank is a lit curious for folks coming in who are not as familiar with the yard, people who work there who are pulling out and in and filling their own tanks. I didn’t know if the staff had any issues regarding that placement and clearance for trucks. There was also a dumpster that was being painted that was sitting off to the side. It seemed a little precarious in terms of a path that, once again, somebody not familiar with the property would be because it seems dead on, not that close to the gate but still. So I don’t know if there’s some consideration or thought about whether that could be moved, should be moved. 

Mr. Jim Annichiarico stated not so sure it’s an easy thing to move, however, there are bollards in front of it and around it. We could possibly try to widen up the area to the left of it to make sure that there’s – we can maybe even put a sign or something right in front of it.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated maybe just some bollards or something to flag…

Mr. Jim Annichiarico stated there are bollards there now. We can possibly put a sign in front of it saying which way traffic should flow.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated I just thought it could potentially be confusing, especially the first time people pull into that space because it narrows right there.

Mr. Jim Annichiarico stated we’ll do whatever we can to make that better.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated the bollards are right at the tank, at the corners. Is there a possibility that you can put them a little bit further apart or further away from them? If a truck hits that bollard, it’s going to hit the tank.

Mr. Jim Annichiarico responded we’ll take a look at that, make sure it’s up to snuff.

Mr. Robert Foley stated and also the bollards that are there they don’t really look substantial. Is there an upgrade to them?

Mr. Jim Annichiarico responded I’ll take a closer look at them. I didn’t look at them really closely during the field visit but I’ll take another look at them and see what – I’m sure Mike will want to come out there and look at it now. In conjunction with Mike we’ll come up with something that’s…

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated the combination of enhancements to the bollards or maybe some pavement striping to delineate not to drive too close to it. We’ll work with you in getting that resolved.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I’m also curious, maybe you addressed it here but the stacked, empty dumpsters or…

Mr. Jim Annichiarico responded the roll-off containers?

Mr. Robert Foley asked yes, are they going to stay there?

Mr. Jim Annichiarico responded yes, they will stay there. They’ll be outside of the compost facility obviously but they will remain in that area.

Mr. Robert Foley asked is there a future use for them?

Mr. Jim Annichiarico responded that’s part of their site plan approval now. That’s part of CRP’s site plan approval, the area where all the roll-off containers are stacked.
Mr. Robert Foley asked people with citizens coming in, in their cars, I don’t know if they’ll be in that far -- There’s no way kids are going to get out and start climbing?

Mr. Jim Annichiarico responded no, citizens won’t be allowed to drive back to that part of the facility. They’ll only be allowed to access the front drop-off and pick-up area, just inside the other gate.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked staff, do you have any comments?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded no, we have no problem with scheduling the public hearing. They still need to have our arborist go out there and just take a look at the trees, but based on the site inspection, a lot of that stuff in the back doesn’t look like high quality trees but we do want our arborist to report, but we have no problem going ahead with the public hearing.

Mr. Jim Annichiarico stated the arborist was there and gave us, he gave us a time estimate so we just have to give the money, he can do his report.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated I did have a question about the tree removal. I think if we’re looking at the site, the tree removal or part of it is on that berm which is close to the river side or the water side, is that right?

Mr. Jim Annichiarico responded yes.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated I’m sort of curious from the perspective of folks on the water, will the view be into the compost facility rather than having some tree screen just in terms of the recreational?

Mr. Jim Annichiarico responded good question. Chris, if you could maybe zoom in on that triangular portion of the property.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked does one of the plans have trees X’ed out?

Mr. Jim Annichiarico responded yes, there should be one actually that shows them X’ed out.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked what do you think?

Mr. Jim Annichiarico responded can’t remember. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated it looks like sheet 3 of 5 in your plan.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked what’s the reference number?

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated bottom right corner.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked 2.2?

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder responded yes, 2.2.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the thought process is though, a lot of those trees up there aren’t coming out.

Mr. Jim Annichiarico stated they were not coming out, right. That was the point I was going to make Mr. Kimmerling was that many of the trees further back, there’s no reason for us to disturb that area so they will be remaining.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated I remember on the visit, there was some discussion about the berm and whether or not…

Mr. Jim Annichiarico responded yes, but the berm we were talking about is actually in further where the actual, some of the storage areas…

Mr. George Kimmerling stated dissipate the lot, sort of screening between the water and folks on the water seeing the compost rather than seeing trees as they’re enjoying the water.

Mr. Jim Annichiarico stated not a great deal.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I wasn’t at the site visit. Where are the 46 trees? In that section as well?

Mr. Jim Annichiarico responded I believe it was submitted with the newest set of plans. There was a drawing that showed the actual X’s through the trees that were to be removed.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated yes, you can see the X’s. Unless those are …

Mr. Jim Annichiarico stated no those are just the actual tree location. Those are actually elevations.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated some trees may be removed back here but not all of them.

Mr. Jim Annichiarico stated only the ones closest to the chain link fence. If you see there, right there Chris, as you go down, as you come down the page, maybe those two I think may have been slated to go and then anything on the other side of that chain link fence. Anything within the chain link fence will be removed but anything outside, most of the trees outside of it should remain. So I don’t believe there’ll be a huge difference from that side of the river.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated Madame Chair I move that we proceed to schedule a public hearing on this project for Tuesday, July 10th.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so we have your public hearing coming up.

Mr. Jim Annichiarico stated thank you, see you next month. Thank you.
PB 4-14  c. Application of Mongoose Inc. for the property of Mongoose Inc., Commercial Real Estate Asset Management Inc., and JPG Cortlandt Inc., for Preliminary Plat approval and Steep Slope, Wetland and Tree Removal permits for a 3 lot subdivision of an approximately 26 acre parcel of property located on the south side of Maple Avenue and on the east side of Dickerson Road and Hilltop Drive as shown on a 7 page set of drawings entitled “Subdivision of Abee Rose Situate in the Town of Cortlandt, Westchester County, NY” prepared by Badey & Watson Surveying and Engineering PC, latest revision dated March 22, 2018 with sheet 7 entitled “Preliminary Details” revision dated April 19, 2018.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the board was also there on site inspection for this particular application. Do we have any comments? Did you want to make a comment first?
Mr. Fred Wells responded I just wanted to say hello, Fred Wells, Tim Miller Associates. I’m glad to be here.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked board, anybody? Comments? Nothing? Excellent.

Mr. Peter Daly stated where do we start? The biggest issue for me is the whole idea of allowing the possible cutting down of trees later on. Looking at that site, I think you’d have to cut down one heck of a lot of trees just to get a view of any lakes. They’ll have a view in the winter time when there’s nothing on the trees but there’s a lot of trees between those lakes and where those sites are. I don’t know if that’s even something that we should even approve and put in the conditions that there could be any possible application to cut down trees in the future, especially off property.

Mr. Fred Wells stated if I may respond. The view is something that the owner was hoping to get and we advised him, just as you described, there might be wintertime views from these sites not likely from the summer without clearing a lot of trees. It’s clear from looking at both being on the site and looking at the tree plan. What I asked Chris if he could do is add that condition that’s in from the developer’s agreement because they’re into the approval for a subdivision. Just as it stated that if the future owner of a lot wants to clear any trees outside his site he needs to come back to this board which is part of the existing regulations. We’re not proposing at this time to even consider the trees clearing. We’ve just made you aware this interest in that. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we’re not even at approval yet, let alone what we include if we were to approve it, what’s in a resolution and what’s not in a resolution as a condition.

Mr. Fred Wells stated understood. I’m just trying to explain. We’re not proposing to clear trees.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated you’re under the impression there’s an approval here.

Mr. Fred Wells stated we’re not proposing to clear trees as part of the subdivision approval.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated I was at the site visit and I have mixed feelings about this project. There’s a lot of site work involved for the homes that are projected to be there, and a lot of disturbances, a lot of trees, not even a clear view, talking about just remove trees to sight the homes and driveways, the long driveways. I wouldn’t say I’m really not happy about it but I have to say, on the other hand, this is an improvement from having, I don’t know how many potential homes on that site which was the original that was 19 or 26 or something like, which was totally unacceptable for us. Depends how you look at it. I just have mixed feelings about it.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated my issue is, on the disturbed property, yes you can build on steep slopes above 15% with a special permit but you’re looking something like 28% of the disturbed site is steep slopes over 15%.

Mr. Fred Wells stated it is acknowledged that a lot of the site is steep and we’ve tried to make that clear in our submission. What we’ve attempted to do in terms of sighting houses and routing the driveways, and so forth, to the best areas on the site, tried to minimize those impacts.

Mr. Robert Foley stated my concern also, as Tom was saying, is the amount of disturbance. As we walked it, and then as you look at the plan again, the cut and fill not just on the road going in but then on driveway for lot #3 which is I think the longest, circuitous driveway up, it’s long but I guess that’s the only way along the side of the – because of the elevation was too steep. It came straight up from the road instead of from the end of the cul-de-sac, lot 3.

Mr. Fred Wells responded yes, all the lots we’ve attempted to locate the driveways where there’s minimal cut and fills. Some of them have retaining walls on either side to minimize the extent, the width of the cut or fill. We tried to balance that aspect of the project.

Mr. Robert Foley stated how long is the driveway on lot 3? Do you know? 

Ms. Margaret McMannis stated from Badey & Watson stated the driveway on lot 3 is over 500 feet long and that necessitates the turnaround that is shown at the garage. The challenge is to meet the grade requirements on the driveway and we have to snake it back-and-forth and that makes it a little bit longer.

Mr. Robert Foley asked 500 feet total?

Ms. Margaret McMannis responded it’s over 500. I don’t know exactly how long it is but I know it is over 500 feet.

Mr. George Kimmerling asked I just had a question, we talked a little bit about this on Sunday, and again thanks for being there with us. The staging of the project, there’s the road to get to the lots and then there’s the lot itself. Is that one project or is it possible that the road would need to be built before the lots are sold and so we’d have to in effect we’d be approving the road project and the road would be built but maybe the lots would sit there for a while but we would have had the disturbance for the road? Do you know what I’m saying?

Ms. Margaret McMannis responded yes, with any subdivision the infrastructure; the road, the water lines, the drainage, all of that has to be put in place before you build any of the houses. 

Mr. George Kimmerling asked but would you do that before the houses are actually contracted for?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded that’s up to the developer. I’m sure he doesn’t want to lay out a whole bunch of money if he doesn’t have some security that he is selling the lots. But all subdivisions have to have the infrastructure in place before they can build any house.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked what’s the timeline for just the construction or development of the road? Is there any perceived timeline? My concern is that residents that are living in that area are going to be seeing a lot of traffic going in and out there, not only for the construction of the road, but later on for the construction of the homes.

Ms. Margaret McManus responded obviously heavy equipment would be brought on site to do the site work, moving of the earth and then at some point materials would need to be delivered. It’s not like there would be constant delivery of trucks in and out. The machines come to site. They stay on site and then there are delivery trucks that bring in materials. This road would probably take a construction season to build so if there was an approval by – it doesn’t seem likely that there will be construction started this season. There could be, but it doesn’t seem likely. So that means you would start at the beginning of the construction season in 2019 and hopefully be done with the road construction by the end of the construction season in 2019.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked and you define a construction season as what: spring to fall?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded yes. So, obviously depending on the weather and this March was an example of a bad construction season because sometimes you can start in early March but obviously this year no one started until April and then depending on the weather in the fall you usually won’t go past December but usually into November you can still do construction.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked and what about the times of the days and days of the week that will be allowed for construction?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded typically it’s Monday to Friday and I don’t know if it’s 8:00 to 5:00 or somewhere 9:00 to 5:00 and then sometimes there will be Saturday work. There’s never Sunday work and Saturday work is often limited to a half day, but that’s usually the contractor’s preference, but we can obviously make a stipulation and put it on the site plan.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated I’m concerned with weekends, again, because of the disturbance and the noise of the trucks going up and down there. I don’t think residents want that on their weekend.

Ms. Margaret McManus stated I believe there are noise ordinances in the Town of Cortlandt. 

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated there’s a noise ordinance in the town code but the board, if it so desires, can require a later start time. I was not at the site walkthrough but Chris did relate some of the concerns of the board and in my opinion, the board’s really looking for a more robust and concrete construction sequencing plan with enough details to show staging areas on the site plan, material storage, etc to minimize impacts of the existing residential neighborhood. As the tree clearing for the common infrastructure is constructed and the road is rough graded, it would be more beneficial to keep storage and material, equipment, etc, further into the cul-de-sac and away from the existing residential homes.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so all that would be spelled out on conditions of approval when it comes to that time?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded correct, with the construction sequencing plan.

Mr. Robert Foley asked the whole protocol and then these are three homes, if that’s the way it goes, they would be built simultaneously or is it on spec or what?

Mr. Fred Wells responded they’ll be sold to individual owners but potentially one developer would build all three homes or it could be three different developers for three different owners. That’s unknown at this time.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated I’d like to see that sequence of construction before we get to the, if we get to a resolution on this so we can look at it and provide comments to it.

Ms. Margaret McManus stated of course.

Mr. Peter Daly stated the other thing might is a safety issue too is that Hillcrest is relatively narrow and you’ve got kids up there that are probably going to be playing during the day, especially in the off school season, in the summer and if you’ve got construction going on what kind of – first thing, what kind of provisions for safety are going to be done up there just for people in the street and where are any workers going to be parking their cars? Because that may be an issue for the residents and for safety.

Ms. Margaret McManus responded there would be an initial cut in into the site that would allow for the construction equipment and the workers to be on site. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked so that would be into the woods so-to-speak?

Ms. Margaret McManus responded yes.

Mr. Robert Foley asked the cars, the equipment, the port-a-John’s, everything would be…

Ms. Margaret McManus responded yes, everything would be on site.

Mr. Peter Daly asked and what about security on site too? Because God knows you’re going to have kids being curious.

Ms. Margaret McManus responded right, so contractors have to deal with that on a daily basis. Say, they disable their backhoes. They have locks into the cabs these days. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated and then we have a letter from a resident. Is that in the record already?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t think so.

Mr. Robert Foley stated an email April 27th.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated yes, that was discussed last month. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated just going back a second to the tree issue. I don’t see putting that stipulation that’s in the agreement into the resolution as a solution because – I’ve been struggling over that stipulation ever since I read because basically it takes away, as I read it, all the power from the Planning Board to ever say you can’t cut down trees in that area. Because it has that kind of weird statement that “it shall not be unreasonably denied or delayed” and then it allows you to cut down trees against our law in virtually every aspect of the law: in steep slopes, in the number of trees you’re cutting. From my perspective, that’s absolutely not a solution to put that in the resolution. I don’t know how that got into the agreement as it is.

Mr. Tom Wood stated it’s an overly broad interpretation or clause but in any event, obviously from what I’m hearing is that what they’re indicating as part of this application there’s no request to remove any trees off the site beyond the boundaries of the 26 acres.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I understand but it gives them the right in this agreement…

Mr. Tom Wood stated in the future. An agreement can’t override the law. The law is the law. It does make representation that any approval not be unreasonably withheld which is certainly a legal standard that all permits have to be guided by.

Ms. Margaret McManus stated it is not the intention that there would ever be clear cutting of a view.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated we can’t know that by just you saying that. What happens in 10 years? What happens in 15 years?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated if an owner wants to do that, they’ll be able to do that.

Ms. Margaret McManus stated but that isn’t before your board. That isn’t. That’s an agreement…

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated but before our board’s decision whether to approve or not, and the agreement is part of making that decision. If we don’t like what’s in the agreement, we may not approve it. That’s the only way we can make that decision.

Mr. Tom Wood stated you have to make a decision on the application that’s before you. There’s no permission being requested to cut any trees or anything off site.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated but what’s in the agreement is part of what the…

Mr. Tom Wood stated and the agreement says that it’s subject to the tree law. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated the agreement does not say that at all. It says the opposite of that and the application, the agreement goes with the application because if the application is approved, the agreement is approved.

Ms. Margaret McManus stated the agreement is already approved. You’re not an approving part of that.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated the only way I can make a decision though is to determine whether this site plan meets with the kinds of environmental standards that I believe and comports with our law and it doesn’t comport with our law.

Ms. Margaret McManus stated and this site plan does.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated not necessarily because you still need a steep slope permit and that’s the purview of this board whether to approve it or not.

Ms. Margaret McManus stated yes.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated so don’t say it’s a fait accompli. 

Ms. Margaret McManus stated I’m not saying that. I’m saying that the application does not include any clearing off site. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated but the application gives you the right to clear next year, or the year after, or the year.

Mr. Tom Wood stated not without coming back for appropriate permits just like any other property.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated but with certain rules around on whether we can approve it or not. To me this is unacceptable.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it might be better not to have that in there. 

Ms. Margaret McManus stated that agreement has already been executed with the town. I’m not the attorney on that file.

Mr. Tom Wood asked what conditions are placed on the approving resolution or not is going to be the purview of this board so we can take your comments tonight, certainly see what could come up that might be appropriate to the board if and when you get to that point.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated all these things of course will be, establishing a public hearing so we’ll be going over these things I’m sure, together with the public at a public hearing which I’m about to schedule.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated yes we are but there was something else that was said here tonight. You wanted to see something else. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I’ll put that in the motion.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked you’ll put that into the motion? Okay fine. We are going to setting a public hearing.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chair I move that we schedule a public hearing for July the 10th and also request that, in advance of that public hearing, we get the construction sequencing plan that was talked about.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you may want to consider some of the things that were said here regarding the trees, because I’ll tell you, we can say whatever we want to say. Once a person has purchased that property and decides in a year or two, well I don’t like the way this is, my view, I want to take down these trees. Given where they are and the fact that so many home owners don’t come to the board or don’t go through the process the way they should, they could actually literally clear cut on their property certainly. I think it’s important that we still have some control over that. We have tree laws and we have a couple of people who have spent a good many years working on those laws, and all kinds of things related to the trees in the Town of Cortlandt. You may want to just give some additional consideration. The Town Board I’m sure won’t object to the fact that we don’t want you to cut down more trees than necessary. They would be happy to just leave that question alone. I think we need to just maybe not put things into this agreement that sort of gives people the sense that they can kind of circumvent what the original intent was behind the laws that we have for trees in this town.

Ms. Margaret McManus stated I believe that the attorney for the project can speak with Mr. Wood and maybe they can work out language that is more agreeable to the board.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated so that means that Tom would be that the agreement could be revised.

Ms. Margaret McManus stated it could be an amendment.

Mr. Robert Foley asked would it also include carry over to new ownerships, second owner to make sure, make them aware of any restrictions?

With all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Fred Wells stated thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you’re welcome.

PB 2018-5    d.
Application of 3120 Lexington LLC for Site Development Plan approval and for Tree Removal and Wetland Permits for a proposed hardware store and a warehouse serving the hardware store located in an existing building at 3120 Lexington Avenue as shown on a 2 page site plan drawing entitled “Proposed Site Alterations, 3120 Lexington Avenue” prepared by Hudson Engineering & Consulting P.C. dated March 20, 2018, a 2 page set of proposed building elevations entitled “Renovation and Repair to the Ahearn Building” prepared by Heike Schneider, Architect, dated February 15, 2018 and a landscape plan entitled “Proposed Site Plan Alterations” prepared by Sherwood & Truitt, LLC dated April 13, 2018.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I don’t believe there’s anyone here representing the applicant. You did get in your packets this evening a letter from their attorney, Mr. Betensky. I did speak with him. I believe at the work session the Planning Board had agreed to schedule a site inspection on this case in July. He also wants a public hearing but we’re not recommending a public hearing at this time.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated we have two already scheduled for that day right?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded you’re going to have two site inspections for that day.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated no we have two public hearings scheduled for the next meeting.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated almost irrelevant, it’s not ready for a public hearing in our opinion.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated definitely not.

Mr. Robert Foley asked but the site visit would be on the 8th and there’s one other?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes.

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we set a site inspection for July 8th on this application. 

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so we will have that site inspection on the 8th.

PB 6-15      e.
Application of Hudson Ridge Wellness Center, Inc. for Site Development Plan approval and a Special Permit to reuse the seven existing buildings located at the former Hudson Institute property to provide a 92 bed private residential treatment program for individuals who are recovering from chemical dependency on a 20.83 acre property located at 2016 Quaker Ridge Road as shown on a 7 page set of drawings entitled “Hudson Ridge Wellness Center” prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. latest revision dated May 16, 2018. (see prior PB 49-86)

Mr. Robert Davis stated good evening Madame Chairperson, Robert Davis for the applicant, haven’t been here in a while. With me tonight is Tom Cusack, our hydrogeologist. We’re here for a very limited purpose tonight. There’s just one item that we have to discuss briefly and that’s the matter of our pump test. Well monitoring plan required by the town’s hydrogeologist and staff and the board as well as by the County Health Department. In response really to public concern about wells that has been expressed and as an aid to the board in evaluating the application and as a preceding to hearings on it, that information is necessary. So we’re really here tonight, having had staff meetings, and having had the hydrogeologist for both the town and our client confer also with the input of opponent’s hydrogeologist, simply to be able to move forward with what is a voluntary program required of us but voluntary on behalf of the nearby owners with invitations to nearby owners within a radius that’s been presented and evaluated by the hydrogeologist to ask them if they wish to participate in having their wells monitored while we do a very intensive and conservative well pump test on our wells pumping basically at over twice the rate that we would expect to have in our natural usage but then to monitor the results on the well participants off site that would be a part of that program and then to evaluate that information for purposes of any mitigation needed, for purposes of the board’s consideration. So again, it really has nothing to do with finding the board one way or the other in terms of a determination ultimately on the application which will be subject to public hearings but merely to enable us to send out invitations to surrounding property owners at this point within 1,500 feet. I think we have a list of about 55 people. And to proceed at that point probably a month down the line with moving forward with doing the actual testing and then presenting the results to the board. 
Mr. Steven Kessler asked can you explain what the criteria used to determine the radius?

Mr. Robert Davis responded yes, Mr. Cusack can speak to that.

Mr. Tom Cusack stated good evening. My name is Tom Cusack. I’m a senior supervising hydrogeologist. I work with WSP, formerly LBG. I am a certified professional geologist in the state of New York. The pumping test itself and the aspect of the radius of monitoring would be very typical for the proposed ground water withdrawals of about 12,000 gallons a day, and the aspect of determining potential impact to neighboring home are wells. The 1,500 foot radius is very typically used by in the guidance of a DEC, New York State DEC pumping tests and in the super process and certainly under Westchester and under typical town guidelines. That radius is a typical radius. In some instances if you have much higher ground water withdrawals for say a public water supply source, you would typically then go to 2,500 feet. We submitted the pump test plan and there were several revisions. And basically incorporating comments from, obviously the town’s hydrogeologist, public comments, and it was always proposed as 1,500 feet and it has been endorsed by the town’s hydrogeologist as an acceptable radius.

Mr. Robert Davis stated basically, as we understand it, Mr. Cusack of course can answer any more questions but our understanding, we had a report from the town’s hydrogeologist on March 23rd. We submitted, in response to that, partial response to that we submitted our pump test on April 4th. The hydrologist looked at it again, conferred with Mr. Cusack and the other hydrogeologist for neighboring property owners. Basically the only change from April 4th to what we’ve submitted on May 14th that I understand Mr. Catavan has also reviewed and signed off essentially is that we basically upped the pump rate of our 72 hour test and made it even more intensive. It’s our understanding, based on Mr. Cusack’s communications with the towns consultant that he’s basically signed off on both our methodology for the test and our notification procedure. So we would just merely like to send out our invitations to the surrounding property owners within that 1,500 foot radius at this time and then the way the test is predicated is that the ultimate testing would be done of 10 selected owners which would be determined by the staff with approval of the board so we would have to come back on it, they would be based, Mr. Cusack can talk on this more if need be, but in a way that they would be strategically placed to make sure that all impacts were best obtained and the results were most informative rather than for example having three neighbors right next to each other, we would try to, if people volunteer enough to spread them throughout the radius of the area to get the best possible representative results.

Mr. Tom Cusack stated for pumping test and off site well monitoring programs it is key to two approvals. First, it’s just the initial approval of the pumping test plan itself and how it will be implemental. The second and final approval will come from the board. Once we solicit the homeowners and we have received permission from homeowners within the 1,500 foot radius, then myself and the town’s consultant will choose the location for the homeowners that will be incorporated. What we’d like to see is them nicely, spatially located within a 360 degree around within the radius itself. We don’t want three homes next to each other. We like to see a good spatial representation throughout the 1,500 foot radius. The town’s consultant, NWSP, will work on which wells will be incorporated. That will be submitted to you for a final approval to execute the pump test. So tonight we’re just looking to continue the solicitation of the off-site homeowners within the 1,500 foot to receive permission. The next submission would be the actual wells that are being proposed to be monitored during the pumping test program.
Mr. George Kimmerling stated just a quick question, so here on this map we see 55 wells: are you soliciting all 55 homeowners and then you’re going to see who says yes and then figure out the testing ground?

Mr. Tom Cusack responded yes, to date, what we call a door-to-door solicitation is what we initially implement by basically driving around. I did this surveillance, actually myself. What we look for is obviously are new homes. Why new homes? Because most new homes, the wells are not buried. The wells have to obviously be accessible. So we look for new homes, newer type homes and we look for homes that will give us a good spatial representation within the radius.

Mr. George Kimmerling asked but all these homes will be solicited?

Mr. Tom Cusack responded yes, so what’s happened is 14 have been solicited to date. We have received permission from one homeowner as you can see and the second approach will be sending out certified letters to all homes within the 1,500 foot radius.

Mr. George Kimmerling asked and then what happens any survey? What happens if you don’t have enough people who said yes, or is there a minimum number of people who need to say yes in order for this test to be valid?

Mr. Tom Cusack responded we’re looking for 10 homeowners. That’s what’s in the plan and the agreed upon number, the town’s hydrogeologist…

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated I just want to state that Ken has not agreed to. It was recommended by you and it’s up to the Planning Board to determine if it’s going to be 10 or more. Ten was just the number that was tossed out. Our consultant did agree that that was a good number to start with but he did not state that the 10 was the absolute number. 

Mr. Tom Cusack asked I think 10 is the minimum? Is that what you’re saying?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded he was accepted with that. He couldn’t be here tonight but he was okay with the 10 and there’s a draft memo that we have with his notes and thought process.

Mr. Robert Davis stated of course, it is voluntary. We cannot force anyone but then if people can’t really have it both ways. They can’t complain about possibility of impact on their wells and then say, well we don’t want you to test our well. The applicant doesn’t get put in a catch twenty-two situation. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked Mr. Kimmerling was asking, what happens if you don’t get the approval?

Mr. Tom Cusack responded typically what we do is then we will submit, obviously, we have to solicit, we are soliciting all the homeowners within 1,500 feet and they will be given a response time, timeframe. Obviously at that point, the town’s hydrogeologist, this is what happens all the time, and LBG will look at the number of homes that we have and feel whether that is adequate enough for the monitoring of the regional aquifer during the pumping test program.

Mr. George Kimmerling asked and this would be likely done in the summer, in a drier month?

Mr. Tom Cusack responded it will be conducted during a period where precipitation is at, what is considered, average, a monthly average. The months prior to the pumping test program will be reviewed and therefore, the town’s hydrogeologist will be looking for typically average historical water demands during the period prior to the execution of the pump test. If there is, obviously, excessive rainfall then the test will be postponed once you get a period where, again, it is determined by the town’s hydrogeologist to be acceptable.

Mr. George Kimmerling asked just one more question, sorry for monopolizing the time here. The plan, the way that you’re going to do the testing this has been agreed to by the applicant, by the town, and by the homeowners? This is sort of a consensus plan? Is that what you’re saying?

Mr. Robert Davis responded I think there’s complete consensus as far as I know between the town and the town’s professional staff, and the applicant. It came from a collaborative effort. It also came with the input of the opponent’s hydrogeologist if you will. We bent over backwards to accommodate his concerns as well. I’m sure he would still say we would want you to do even more but the consensus between the applicant, I believe, and the town staff will speak for themselves, nut I think we’ve more than gone to a reasonable pumping rate where pumping continuously, for 72 hours at twice the anticipated draw of water. So it will have far more impact than the actual usage would have because under normal conditions of the operation of the site, we’re not going to be pumping water continuously for 72 hours. There’s nighttime and so forth. We’re also going to have a water storage tank as part of our water system, not the fire tank, but built in to the water distribution system which will mitigate pumping demand at any given time. This is an extremely conservative test and it’s with the recommendation and approval of the town’s hydrogeologist, and Mr. Preziosi, and the professional staff have looked at it as well. I believe they have also found it to be more than reasonable.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked so suppose you get 10, 15 homeowners but it’s not spatially representative of the area you want to cover. What happens then?

Mr. Tom Cusack responded I’ve been in the business for approximately 35 years. It’s never really necessarily happened in my experience. We tend to get a good spatial representation within the region. In some instances, we may, in the instance of say we’re looking for the minimum of 10 and just say we get 10, and then a small portion tends to be a cluster. We would monitor it and incorporate the wells that are possibly adjoining to each other.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated my concern also is that 10 out of a potential of, what 55, is not representative even if you get 10. And just like you said it may be clustered in one area and not the other. There was a letter dated April 10th. I don’t know if this is the letter that was sent out to the homeowners with a table on it, and the same diagram that we see up there.

Mr. Tom Cusack responded that is the permission…

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated and you got a very poor response to that memo. Is that incorrect to say that?

Mr. Robert Davis asked what was the?

Mr. Thomas Bianchi responded it was a poor response.

Mr. Robert Davis stated that’s right but, again, at that point I think some people had some reservations that were expressed because they weren’t aware and it hadn’t happened formally yet that the town had signed off on the plan. Again, we’ve seen this in other communities, especially Mr. Cusack as sometimes you have people who are opposing the project that feel perhaps that might hold things up if no one participates but I think in that instance, the application can’t be, in effect, held in delay. I think people tend to lose their standing then. They can’t complain about concern about wells and then say they don’t want their well tested. I think at that point you have to leave it to the expert hydrogeologist for the board to evaluate because I don’t want to lose the context of the fact that Mr. Cusack’s hydrogeological report indicates that the likelihood of our impacting the wells given the actual usage of water and the recharge by the septic system, and the annual rainfall, is actually very small in terms of the net usage. So we don’t expect it to impact the wells. We’re bending over backwards to dot every I and cross every T to make sure that we prove that’s the case. But again, we can’t force people to participate.
Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated you can’t but this is a pivotal issue in this application. My concern is that they may not be signing onto this for a variety of reasons and you may not know what some of those reasons are until you do a better job of selling to them why this is important to the extent maybe of even with holding a meeting with these residents and try to explain to them what is the basis for this and why it’s so important to them as well as to you.

Mr. Tom Cusack stated I think to follow up on your initial question. A few of the homeowners had contacted me after the solicitation and indicated that they were willing to agree to be incorporated in the well monitoring program, they were just looking for the town to endorse the program first, which they were not aware that the town had done. I think I agree with both your comments in the aspect of what you brought up but I think once the board approves for us to proceed, I think we’ll see some permission forms coming in.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated my understanding is, from what Mr. Preziosi said, is that it’s up to us as to whether 10 is adequate or not ultimately.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated definitely the first step in order to get the public buying for the well monitoring and testing is for the board to okay the release of a solicitation to these 55 properties. From there, the next step would be to how many individuals would actually respond to accept the program and then at the next meeting in July the board can receive and file the recommended well monitoring plan and make a final determination decision as to how many off site properties should be monitored. Our hydrogeologist will be here present with myself to answer any questions.
Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked we’ll be apprised of how this is going in terms of getting participation in it along the way?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded yes, because I think it is key that residents do realize that the Planning Board has an opportunity to review this. Town staff has had an opportunity as well as our consultant and that we’re okay with the solicitation radius and the properties that were identified. Again, it’s key to indicate, it’s a little tough to see on the map, but there are 8 properties that are hatched with a slight orange tint to it and those are properties that were recorded with well issues and concerns. Those should be given priority and then other properties filled in around those to get a representative sampling of the area. Again, I just want to stress we’re running into a little bit of a time crunch because the dry weather months are approaching and that would be the best time to monitor ground water levels. So we want to make sure that solicitation can be sent out. The residents can hear it from the town that the solicitation is approved by the town and at the next meeting the board would receive and file the final version of the off-site monitoring plan and make a recommendation as to which properties would be tested.

Mr. George Kimmerling asked we would be approving the solicitation itself or simply the idea of soliciting?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded the idea of solicitation to this 1,500 foot radius.

Mr. George Kimmerling asked we won’t be pre-approving the actual message or letter?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded no.

Mr. George Kimmerling asked so it shouldn’t suggest that we’ve approved the solicitation but just…

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded the radius on the properties that were identified.

Mr. Tom Wood stated but I do think that we’d like to review it before it went out, the letter.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated and that was one of our contentions that we felt that the original solicitation was a bit premature because we didn’t have a chance to review the language, etc. because it, as Mr. Bianchi was stating, it is important to stress, again I’m going to repeat myself, the importance of the off-site well monitoring.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so those that do not participate, you’re not looking for any kind of waiver of liability or anything, are you?

Mr. Robert Davis responded no, of course not. Again, we have to look at this in the overall context. It has to be reviewed in terms of the entire hydrogeological report we’ve submitted that’s reviewed by your town’s expert to indicate what the probability is regardless of anyone participates of the impact on the wells. And don’t forget, as part of the overall proposal and application, we propose the rather extensive, if the board were ultimately to approve the project, part of one of the conditions on that would be a post-approval well monitoring plan that would probably go on for at least two years and that’s part of our hydrogeological report that’s been reviewed by Mr. Catavan.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked what was your intent when you said you can’t have it both ways about the people that participate or not?

Mr. Robert Davis responded I’m simply making the point that, and again this is an editorial comment, is that we have people, one of the issues that’s been raised, one of the principal things we focused on is the concern with people’s wells. There’s one neighbor we’ve worked with, with respect to his well and we found causes for his well problem, but that was seemingly rectified. But, what I’m saying is, it’s very difficult, from my perspective, this is one person’s view, to attach credibility to someone that says, “I’m concerned about the impact of this particular use on my well but at the same time I don’t want my well to be monitored to indicate what the impacts may be or to give the applicant an opportunity to mitigate those impacts.”

Mr. George Kimmerling stated given that one of the, Mr. Preziosi as you said, one of the affected properties is sort of north of all the others. If you look there’s one orange property that’s outlined, the radius. Is it possible to include that homeowner and perhaps any others that wrap around that road?

Mr. Tom Cusack stated this evening I would agree to solicit the orange hashed properties that fall outside the 1,500 foot radius to be included in the monitoring program.

Mr. George Kimmerling asked could I just include the people that wrap around between the orange property and property number six?

Mr. Tom Cusack responded I could include all those in orange on that map including the one, as you can see the outer line orange mark…

Mr. George Kimmerling stated I’m talking about the ones in between this curve, we could do those two.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated soliciting the remaining properties along that road, that comes back onto Quaker.

Mr. Tom Cusack stated I think to give you some level of comfort, I’ve in the business, like I said for over 30 years. I have developed over 50 million gallons a day of water supplies within south eastern New York and western Connecticut. This program that we’re implementing is implemented on every water supply project, meaning, this well monitoring program. It’s been done successfully, without incident, providing very good support data in the decision process. This is not something for some of you haven’t seen this before. This is commonly applied for in the SEQRA process and in any permitting of public water supply source.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated I just wanted to state for the record it’s Quaker Hill Drive. That’s the road that comes down. They would revise delimited of solicitation to incorporate all the properties along Quaker Hill including that northern half parcel that has potential well issues. 

Mr. Tom Wood stated it may be just good at this point to make one comment. Obviously the Planning Board is the lead agency under SEQRA and SEQRA requires an environmental review of any potential impacts that this development may have. So obviously it’s been identified that water is an issue that has to be studied. So basically the process that we’re going through is to have the hydrogeologist gather a plan or put together a plan that would be acceptable to everybody’s consultants and the Planning Board to study the water. As part of that process, the first step would be how many property owners surrounding this site may be willing to allow the monitoring of their wells during the testing? Once that solicitation is made and those answers come back, then the professionals have to evaluate that, come up with a plan that this board then feels is reasonable based on their recommendations and they’re the ones that are going to have the burden of figuring out if five people respond, can we do it with five? What’s reasonable? Do we have to go back to the drawing board to come up with another testing approach? This is the phase that we’re in gathering the studies of the various issues in SEQRA, and tonight the only request is to allow a letter to go out asking property owners, as in those circles, for permission or agreement to be part of the test. Next month, that would be completed. Based on whatever the responses are, a proposal will be put before this board and then, you as the lead agency, decide if you feel comfortable that that report is going to adequately study the issue that’s before you. It may raise more questions or it may put the issue to rest or may show you exactly what the answer is.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated and just add to that it will also be revisited during the public hearing that we’ll have on this application once we gather all this information. This is really first inning here in terms of getting the information in terms of the water issues, potential water issues but it’ll all get vetted and discussed during the public hearing phase of this application. 

Mr. Tom Wood stated and just to clarify the record a little further has made many references about getting consensus and agreement among the professionals. Obviously the applicant’s professional, the town’s professional and the resident’s professional have met, they’ve discussed it, they have the outline of a plan that everyone, to a different degree, is supportive of saying , “well this is something to be further developed.” But there’s been no final plan resolved or determined until this board says, “yes this is the study parameters. Go forward with it.” Just to clear the record.
Mr. Robert Davis stated I don’t think – this is Mr. Mentz. This is a not a public hearing at this point. So I don’t think that it’s appropriate to be hearing anyone else at this point. 

Mr. Mentz stated [inaudible].

Mr. Robert Davis stated that’s a public hearing.

Mr. Tom Wood stated I think it would be appropriate only because the resident’s consultant has been involved in the process with our consultants and I think that if he has some comments about the process…

Mr. Mentz stated thank you attorney Wood. Thank you Madame Chair and members of the board. I’m Zack Mentz. I’m an attorney with Zarin & Steinmetz on behalf of the citizens. Mr. Davis would refer to them as the opponents but they’re your neighbors, they’re filling the room tonight. I didn’t intend to speak tonight. I’m only doing it because I think the discussion here may be a little bit beyond what I anticipated. I think it was intended to talk about the notice issue. We fully appreciate that the notice doesn’t need to be sent out. Testing doesn’t need to be done, fully appreciate it. I’m concerned that the discussion of methodology may have been overstating the completeness – the form of methodology has taken. I appreciate Mr. Wood and Mr. Preziosi clarifying a bit that it is still an open discussion. There are things that need to be analyzed, certainly from I believe the town’s engineer has recently put in something new that we’ve been wanting to analyze before you finalize any methodology and that’s an ongoing discussion with the board. I do appreciate, I believe it was Mr. Bianchi’s comment, concerns about responsiveness. I can only say that my understanding is the previous mailing that ended up in the mailboxes of neighbors was unsolicited and unaddressed. It had kind of been hand-delivered. We do appreciate the certified mailings will be going out in the future and we do think that’s the appropriate way to get the mailings out. The concern, just from individual to individuals that we have heard from citizens that wells have run dry in the past. Obviously the timing of the well testing looks to be good, July and August, that’s appreciated. There are a few little other things worth discussing though. Just, as far as the radius goes, I do think that it’s appropriate that the board is seeking to notify everyone that’s on Quaker Hill, Quaker Ridge and that we include as many properties as possible, and obviously that’s within the discretion of the board to ask the applicant to notify whoever you feel appropriate. Just going forward, we look forward to the next meeting. My understanding is that based on this discussion here tonight there will be more discussion about the protocol as you start to get response from neighbors. Look forward to that, hearing more about the protocol as it’s developed.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked will you be recommending to your clients to respond to this solicitation in a positive way?

Mr. Zach Mentz stated I can’t say I speak for everyone in this room. We only represent, actually a handful of the people that are in this room and I can tell you that I would push for them to do so if they can. Again, I think it was Mr. Bianchi’s comment, it was well taken though. There are reasons beyond just the well testing itself that people may not be able to have strangers on their property installing electronic equipment to their wells. I fully appreciate that. I’m certainly not going to force anyone to do it. Your point is well taken that we would like to have as much response as possible, certainly.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are there any other comments? Then we will move on.

Mr. Michael Shannon stated very briefly. I’m Michael Shannon. I live next door to the property. I’m really not here to stand in opposition but to ask some questions. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated this is not a public hearing.

Mr. Michael Shannon stated to clarify what we’re doing.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated no, I’m sorry. This is not a public hearing. We have an agenda.

Mr. Michael Shannon stated I understand. I’ve received a notice in the past. I was also tested twice: one time after the storm when we had no power, another time when we also were away. I just want to make sure that what we’re being asked to do when we get a request is pursuant to an agreed upon plan. Mr. Davis said that they’ve bent over backwards to accommodate an expert. I don’t know that there’s a plan that’s agreed upon. I don’t want to withhold consent to a legitimate test, on the other hand I want to know that what I’m consenting to is what is acceptable to you.

Mr. Tom Wood responded the first step is to see who’s willing to participate. The second step, and based on that, is the plan will be approved by this board. But obviously we need to know the numbers of people, the location of the properties and have the hydrogeologist analyze that to see if it’s appropriate enough, sufficient enough. The spacing, you’ve heard that if it’s three properties in a row that doesn’t necessarily equate to a correct number of folks. That’s the only thing that’s being done tonight is to say that the Planning Board is authorizing a solicitation, if you will, to be made to the designated properties to see if they have the willingness to participate in the well test that will be established by this board as the appropriate test.

Mr. Michael Shannon stated I believe the prior solicitation defined a test. This one is just about…

Mr. Tom Wood stated it’s just to say will you do it based on the approved test that the Planning Board will take up probably in its July meeting.

Mr. Michael Shannon stated thank you.

Mr. Robert Foley stated Madame Chair I make a motion that we refer this back to our July meeting.

Seconded.

Mr. Tom Wood stated I think you would also be authorizing the solicitation of consents for the testing subject to prior approval of the letter by the town staff. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated part of the motion.

Seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just one additional item. I believe you got in your packets tonight, there are about 11 additional pages from the Big Book, attachments with respect to the traffic study that was sent over by Rich Pearson. I got that to all the Planning Board members that should go into your book in the traffic section. 

With all in favor saying "aye". 

PB 2018-6
f. Application of the Sentinel at Mohegan Lake, LLC, for the property of the Mohegan Group LLC care of Adult Care Management for site development plan approval and a park permit for the renovation and expansion of 38 beds and 29,386 square feet to an existing 62,805 square foot, 150 bed assisted living facility located at 3441 Lexington Avenue.

Mr. Dan Richmond stated good evening Madame Chair. As you may recall, my name is Dan Richmond. I’m with the law firm, Zarin & Steinmetz here on behalf of the applicant the Sentinel of Mohegan Lake. As, I think, Mr. Kehoe indicated at the beginning of the meeting we would respectfully request that the board schedule us for a site visit. I understand July 8th is a date that may be possible. We’re anxious to move forward with the project. We received staff memos and we are already actively addressing them. I think together with our addressing the memoranda, as well as scheduling a site visit when we appear before you next on July 10th, we’ll be ready to proceed. 

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated Madame Chair I’ll move that we set a July 8th site visit for this application and refer it back.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Dan Richmond stated thank you very much Madame Chair, members of the board. Look forward to seeing you on the 8th.


*



*



*
NEW BUSINESS:

PB 2018-7   a. Application of Shima Chayvet, for the property of Clear Crestview, LLC for Planning Board approval of a change of use from an office to a personal services facility offering diet counseling, stress relief and classes in Reiki, tai chi, etc. located at 4 Crestview Avenue and described in a letter from Shima Chayvet dated May 15, 2018. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chair I move that we adopt Resolution 17-18 approving the change of use. 
Seconded.

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question, I have some questions. As I read your letter again and again, there are only, how many parking spaces that aren’t striped? Five?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded that’s a condition of approval that the parking lot would need to be striped but I don’t know exactly the number of parking spaces that are in there.

Ms. Shima Chayvet stated I’m actually planning to repave it and to also stripe it as well.

Mr. Robert Foley stated my issue would be, knowing the corner and the location, in your letter you’re saying you’re going to have a full time person there every day, administrative assistant or whatever and then you would be having clients come in, on a daily basis.

Ms. Shima Chayvet stated no, actually clients only come in once every 10 to 14 days so people are actually there by appointment, approximately three times a month for the diet counseling and then on an individual basis, for other services that we provide.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so any given day, besides the administrative assistant parking there, how many cars could be in and out? You don’t know.

Ms. Shima Chayvet responded three times a month, there would probably be 10 to 15.

Mr. Robert Foley asked not all at once?

Ms. Shima Chayvet responded oh no. Everything is by appointment.

Mr. Robert Foley asked now what about the classes?

Ms. Shima Chayvet responded the classes are usually no more than 7 people.

Mr. Robert Foley stated that’s 7 more cars.

Ms. Shima Chayvet stated so there would be a total of 8 and those classes are not on the days when the diet counseling is going on.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and then there’s something else you’re saying would happen one weekend a month, but that would be on the weekend though right, the classes?

Ms. Shima Chayvet responded one weekend and there is usually no more than 7 people.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so it sounds like the maximum you’re saying of cars there in the small lot would be 8?

Ms. Shima Chayvet responded 8, possibly 9 at the most.

Mr. Robert Foley asked I’m curious about, since there are residents on that street, would they be parking on the street if they can’t get in the lot?

Ms. Shima Chayvet responded there’s no reason to. The parking lot is actually adequate.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated there would be no on-street, off-street parking permitted. It’s off-street – the lot would have to be restriped which is a condition of the approval and the number of occupants for a class of any sort would be limited by our building inspector during the code review of the interior alterations and fit out of the facility.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated Mike has estimated approximately 12 spaces.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated one of which has to be handicap with the appropriate signage.

Ms. Shima Chayvet responded that’s fine.

Mr. Robert Foley stated so one would be handicap and one would be the administrative assistant and then the other 10. We could have a condition of approval which isn’t on here, for restricting street parking correct? I’m only saying because the residents there, there’s one here tonight.

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded you need to ask the town attorney. Mr. Foley’s wondering about overflow parking from this facility being prohibited from parking on the street. I don’t know if that’s…

Mr. Tom Wood responded well the Town Board certainly can consider parking restrictions.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but it’s not up to this board to do that.

Mr. Tom Wood responded no not this board.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so that can’t be written into this…

Mr. Tom Wood responded if it became a [inaudible] issue I’m sure the Town Board would address it.

Mr. Robert Foley stated it is to some extent on some of the streets with Gymnastic City…

Mr. Tom Wood stated you can always make a recommendation to the Town Board.

Mr. Robert Foley stated we would make it as a board?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded you cannot control parking on a town road. Only the Town Board can control parking on the town road.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated the applicant is proposing off-street parking. It looks as if there’s about 12 spaces that could be striped on site of condition of the resolution is to provide a striping plan with handicap striping and delineation of the property. Again, the maximum number of occupants that would be permitted for a class would be limited by the building type and that would all be wrapped up within the permit review for the building application.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and then the hours of operation sounds like – can we put a condition in there on that? We do it for others. You’re talking about a weekend activity.

Mr. Tom Wood asked what are your usual hours of operation?

Ms. Shima Chayvet responded the one weekend a month is usually Saturday is usually from 1:00 to 5:00 and Sundays from 12:00 to 6:00.

Mr. Robert Foley stated so Sunday too. Is there any town restriction?

Mr. Tom Wood responded no.

Mr. Robert Foley stated none.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it’s a commercial property.

Mr. Robert Foley stated but in the past we’ve not done that on other commercial properties? No? Okay.

Mr. Tom Wood responded you attempted to do one and another town was sued first and then you realized you couldn’t do it.
Mr. Michael Preziosi stated again, there’s a loud noise ordinance on the town book. So any noise would have to…

Mr. Robert Foley stated it would be up to the residents to complain.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated if there’s a complaint, yes, code would investigate if there was a noise complaint.

Mr. Tom Wood stated along the 202 corridor, we’ve addressed it on other streets where change in a business activity has impacted a side street. The Town Board’s taken steps to do whatever had to be done with the parking. I can think of two instances along that corridor. If in approving this it seems to be a low car traffic generator, theoretically it should work with 12 spaces. If there is an issue on a public street and the neighborhood is concerned, the Town Board has addressed it in two other places along there.

Mr. Robert Foley stated the residents would have to go to the Town Board.

Mr. Tom Wood stated it doesn’t require a petition rendering usually, just a contact. If there’s a problem the town then will monitor it and the Town Board’s very aggressive in addressing these things. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated because these are narrow streets, small homes.

Mr. Tom Wood stated so are the other two that I’m thinking of. One was Taylor Avenue and I can’t think of the other one.

Mr. Robert Foley stated Gymnastics City causes the overflow, I think on this street too.

Mr. Tom Wood stated well even that, at one point presented a very big problem that was contained by imposing parking regulations and aggressive enforcement but that was different because that kind of use was beyond what the permitted use of the building was. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated it’s just that it has an impact on the residents.

Mr. Tom Wood stated I think what the town engineer is trying to explain is the fact that, not to put words in his mouth he can do it himself, but there are two things that drive occupancy, one is the New York State Fire Code because the fire inspector will analyze this use and therefore based on it, X number of people will be permitted in the building at any one time. Then once that number is fixed they will then analyze it against the parking spaces to make sure it’s not like – if you’ve got 12 spaces and 50 people then you know there’s going to be a problem.

Mr. George Kimmerling asked is the building itself handicapped accessible?
Ms. Shima Chayvet responded yes.

Mr. Ed Drenga stated I’m a resident two doors down. I have a couple of questions I’m curious about. To alleviate any problems in the future…

Mr. Robert Foley stated you’d have to come up to the mike. It’s up to the Chair.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated go ahead.

Mr. Ed Drenga stated my name is Ed Drenga and I live at 8 Crestview which is two doors down. 

Mr. George Kimmerling asked on the same side of the street or across?

Mr. Ed Drenga responded on the same side of the street. One of the questions we have is that although they’re going to have classes, you say in limited basis, is this a profit organization that you’re doing? I don’t see how you’re going to make a business out of the amount of people you say you’re going to handle in a month.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated that’s not in our purview to discuss.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you have specific questions…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated you don’t have to answer that.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and also the question should be addressed to the board.

Mr. Ed Drenga stated so I’m concerned that the classes that she’s going to offer, if they’re going to be making a profit, is way under reported. We’re concerned that there will be an overflow of people on the street that would also compete with sometimes Gymnastics City that overflows on our street. We’re trying to eliminate any problems that we don’t have to monitor then go to the town in retrospect to get the problem fixed, let’s try to get some parameters that they’re going to operate under that will eliminate any kind of conflict in the future.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it’s just like any place. They have parking. The parking is adequate according to the town code and that’s all we can do. If they’re going to have a party there and there are 50 cars, then that’s a separate issue. But right now, for the use, which is permitted in this location, the parking is adequate. That’s all we can opine on.

Mr. Ed Drenga asked and if they have classes that run several times a week that have 15, 20 people at a time with – like Gymnastics City has a 4 o’clock class, they have a 5 o’clock class, there’s an overlap where the people – we’re trying to avoid having that occur.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but they also have the parking in theory that is consistent with their use.

Mr. Ed Drenga stated in theory, right, but we’re trying to…

Ms. Shima Chayvet stated it’s a diet counsel. It’s not the classes.

Mr. Ed Drenga asked what about Tai Chi? How many people…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated you don’t have to address it.

Mr. Ed Drenga stated that’s a concern. That’s all. Thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated please be quick on it because we are really do not encourage this at a regular meeting.

Ms. stated good evening members of the board. I’m just unclear on the process. If this approved tonight does it go to another board or this is it? So what exactly is your criteria for the change of use? I’m a little bit confused about that. It seems like anyone can come with a certain business and it’s approved. I don’t know the exact number of clients this applicant currently has. I reviewed the letter that was provided and it just seemed a little vague that based on the fact that they want to move back to where they live, that’s sufficient evidence that this location is a good location for this business. So I’m just – I need more information to understand how you govern and what leads you to determine that this business is equivalent to the current business that was there and all these things in consideration.

Mr. Tom Wood stated exactly. The building that was there was originally approved, I believe, as an office type use, law firm and so whenever anyone wants to change from an office use to another use, they have to come here before the board. You’ve heard the board ask the applicant questions about the intensity of the use. That is what’s now in the record, will form part of the record and it will be monitored. If there’s complaints about expanding that, etc then that would obviously be constituting a violation of the site plan.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated this building is in a commercial district. In the town, there is a code that says what’s allowed in a commercial district. The law office was allowed and this is also allowed. So as far as we’re concerned they have a property, commercial and they’re allowed to operate this and then it comes down to, given the intensity of the use of the property, do they have adequate parking to support that? That is the sum total of what we’ve determined here.

Ms. asked so there’s no evidence being provided because she’s actually, from the letter it appears that she’s relocating from her current residence in Peekskill, which that business is currently located, to this and there’s no evidence proving the number of actual clients that are there that may be coming to this. There’s no number…

Mr. Tom Wood responded she’s made a representation on the record what the use is, the hours she’s indicated. I think she said there’d be no more than 10 cars…

Ms. continued it didn’t seem clear to me the actual hours Monday through Friday and what classes will actually entail for those days. To me to provide enough picture that those parking spaces are going to be adequate.

Mr. Tom Wood stated the parking is also derived from the square footage of the building and the type of use is a formula in the zoning ordinance. When the fire inspector goes, it’s verified. Apparently it was previously approved for 12 parking spaces so that’s connected with the square footage of the building. It’s not just willy. The board doesn’t really have the right to really inquire as to how somebody runs their business as long as the physical structure and the parking is kept within the approved site plan. That’s the game, the rules that we have to work with. 

Mr. George Kimmerling stated and again, I know I’m running out of time to plead being the new guy but it would be within our right to understand the traffic, the number of people, the hours, those kinds of things, that’s typical of what we inquire about.

Ms. stated I understand as a resident and I live right off – I take Crestview Avenue to get to my home and I understand. It seems very frustrating to take the traffic into consideration after the fact because living there and having purchased my home in ’96, Gymnastics City is a current problem. 

Mr. Tom Wood responded yes.

Ms. stated the line of sight getting onto 202 is a problem. We have several businesses there. It’s a problem and here we are, the current facility maybe had one car, two cars at most and that was reasonable and doable so I understand that there’s 12 parking spaces but the area, that intersection needs to be reconsidered at some point before there’s a casualty. Thank you for your time.
Mr. Robert Foley stated if I could just say. When I reread this letter, there are no clear hours of operation. Since you’ve been in the neighborhood, I’m trying to get out of those streets, whether it’s Crestview, Tamarack, whatever, on 202. It is very difficult at certain times of day. It’s been a very passive use over the years, this location. And this to me, as I read this, is going to be a very active use.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I believe she’s already explained but why don’t you do it again for the record, your daily operation.

Mr. Tom Wood stated your hours and numbers.

Ms. Shima Chayvet responded three times a month we provide diet counseling services.

Mr. Tom Wood stated on site.

Ms. Shima Chayvet stated on site which is why I was very interested in this particular facility because of the office space and also the one area that they have at the end that was rather large.

Mr. Tom Wood asked could I just interrupt? So you’re indicating two administrative assistants. Are they there all the time for calls and other work?

Ms. Shima Chayvet responded it’s usually one. It’s usually one person. Just so you know, currently I’ve been in Peekskill renting for the last 8 or 9 years and they’re building a fire house across the street.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I’m interrupting but are you moving your facility? You’re closing down your Peekskill facility and the clients you’re talking about for the new facility would be coming from Peekskill.

Ms. Shima Chayvet responded not necessarily. Just so you know, I actually have 8 offices…

Mr. Robert Foley stated no I see that here; all over. What I’m saying is, what you’ve spelled out to us would be a new business, new clients or are you closing Peekskill and those clients are including in there?

Ms. Shima Chayvet responded the facility that I’m in now is located in Peekskill but the clients who come are from all over this area. A lot of them from Cortlandt Manor, Mohegan Lake. They come from all over.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated I think he’s asking if you’re going to maintain the Peekskill office in addition to this office or relocating Peekskill.

Ms. Shima Chayvet responded I’m relocating. We’re actually a very peaceful business. As you can see we practice stress relief. I don’t anticipate there’s going to be a lot of stress, and the three times a month. Three is the maximum for the diet counseling. It could be twice. Those hours I want to clarify, could be from 11 o’clock in the morning until 7 o’clock at night. Everything is done by appointment only so there’s not mass traffic in and out. It’s done by appointment. Once a month I teach Reiki which is a hands-on healing technique. It is actually excellent for stress relief on a personal level. Those hours once a month are from usually on Saturday it is from 1:00 to 5:00 and on Sunday from 12:00 to 6:00. There are no – there cannot be more than 9 people in the class. I cannot teach more than 9 people. And actually, ideally, it’s 7 and then once a month on a Sunday I invite previous students to come to share, to ask questions. And then during the week we have someone come in who answers the phone, takes messages.
Mr. Robert Foley asked the administrative assistant?

Ms. Shima Chayvet responded yes, and actually when I teach there is no administrative assistant, it’s just myself.

Mr. Robert Foley stated it sounds like it’s a seven-day a week all day basically.

Ms. Shima Chayvet stated no, because during the week when we’re not doing diet counseling we only have someone there 6 hours a day to answer the phone.

Mr. Tom Wood asked so based on your description, during your classes that would be the program that has the most people on site at the one time and that’s the class 7 to 9 people?

Ms. Shima Chayvet responded I would believe so, yes.

Mr. Tom Wood asked and the counseling, the appointments during the week are scheduled so there may be a person – are they single appointments or are they groups?

Ms. Shima Chayvet responded no, single.

Mr. Tom Wood asked single, so there may be a person that arrives and then before that person leaves, the next person may arrive.

Ms. Shima Chayvet responded right and there is someone there who meets and greets clients. There are two people there who do the diet counseling, so that’s three, and then the scheduled appointments which only occur two to three times a month at most. You know, I really would not be interested in this building if I thought there was going to be a problem. It’s perfect. The parking’s perfect. I really do not anticipate a problem. And being a resident of Cortlandt Manor I certainly understand how people feel about traffic and disruption and that is not my intent.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I’m sure it’s not, it’s just that it is difficult getting in and out on 202 and I guess the people that live there would know. I don’t know where you live, when you say Cortlandt. 

Ms. Shima Chayvet stated I actually live on Wynwood Road.

Mr. Robert Foley stated you didn’t have to tell us. It just seems not as simple as it appeared here. There’s going to be a lot of usage there.

Ms. Shima Chayvet stated it really is simple. There’s no problems, only solutions. It’s really very peaceful, simple.

Mr. Robert Foley stated if the residents get stressed coming in and out they’ll be your new clients.

Ms. stated understand that Gymnastics City most busiest time is Saturday and they do park over there and it is a problem already. They park in that lot because there’s so much overflow that it’s not enough on Saturdays and during events, when they have events, Saturdays it is full to the max and all along the street, all the way up to the medical facility and down.

Mr. Michael Preziosi asked are they parking on Crestview?

Ms. responded they are parking on Crestview.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated I oversee Code Enforcement and parking. I will have a parking enforcement agent who’s there on weekends drive up and down Crestview and take counts.

Ms. stated thank you, I appreciate it.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I don’t live anywhere near there but when I used to take my granddaughter to Gymnastics City years ago, I’d have to double park, or go on 202, or pull in a gas station and pretend I was a customer. It’s bad and it overflows to the residential street. You probably don’t know. You looked at a nice place, but anyway that’s my concern, the safety.

Ms. Shima Chayvet stated I’m just more concerned that they’re parking in that space.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated that’s your problem.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked do we want to move on at this point? As Mike said, he will actually get Code Enforcement or whomever…

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated we’ll have a parking officer take a look on the weekend to make sure.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated if there’s going to be a problem as we just learned it’s going to be your problem. You’ll have to make sure that your clients can get into those spots to begin with and you may have to find a way to keep other people from using your spaces and that’s probably going to be the most difficult thing to do.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated while you’re on the question, what I will attempt to do is at least so there’s a paper trail, quantify the discussion in the resolution with respect to the classes and the hours that were discussed here so it will actually be reflected in the resolution.

With all in favor saying "aye". 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we have a resolution for you...

Ms. Shima Chayvet asked and who would I submit that information?

Mr. Tom Wood responded toChris…

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded to me.
PB 2018-8   b. Application of Renato & Doris Capalbi, for the property of John & Patricia Allen, for the renewal of a Special Permit for an existing Accessory Apartment located at 189 Frederick Street.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked is that the right place?
Mr. Renato Capalbi responded yes this is.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked do you want to quickly update us on what your situation is here?

Mr. Renato Capalbi responded we’re purchasing this house and that accessory apartment I’d like to put my mom there. She’s 84. I lost my dad last year so I’d like to have her near me. She’s good with the kid, it’s good for her and that’s why we want to move here. We want to extend that accessory so we can have her there, the permit.  That’s why we’re here.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked you’re living there already?

Mr. Renato Capalbi responded no.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you’re not.

Ms. Doris Capalbi stated we’re closing this week.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we discussed this briefly at the work session. It has a legal accessory apartment in it now that was approved over 30 years ago. We have the paperwork, as Mr. Bianchi recalls. At that time the Zoning Board would have issued this special permit. There’s mathematical formulas based on the square footage of the house, based on the size of the accessory apartment. We will need to confirm. And there was a building permit issued so the assumption is what the Zoning Board approved was actually built because the Code Enforcement office issued a building permit but we will confirm that. I believe the door is to the left of the garage there. You’re not making any changes to the exterior of the building. There’s an orange sign there now. The code does require a public hearing so we’ll put a different orange sign up for next meeting. We would recommend scheduling the public hearing. And you will hopefully have closed and taken over the space because I do need to get in there to take some interior photographs.

Mr. Renato Capalbi stated I believe they said it was okay, you can.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I haven’t dealt with the current owner. I’ve been dealing with you so I’ll keep coordinating with you on that.

Mr. Renato Capalbi stated we should be closing in…
Ms. Doris Capalbi stated the week of the 11th, so next week.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked and you have adequate parking? It looks like to the left of where the car is now, there’s more parking.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I’ll have to put together a type of a review memo for you.

Mr. Robert Foley asked you said the door is to the left of the garage, Chris?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes, it’s hard to see, it’s recessed a little.

Mr. Renato Capalbi stated it’s behind that column.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are there any other questions, concerns.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated Madame Chair I recommend that we schedule a public hearing on this for July 10th at our next meeting.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we will have your public hearing next time.

Mr. and Mrs. Capalbi stated thank you.
PB 2018-9    c. Application of Home Depot Store 1251 located at 3051 E. Main Street for Planning Board approval of temporary outdoor storage areas as described in a letter from James Mandato, Assistant Store Manager, received by the Planning Division on May 23, 2018 and as sketched on a site plan received by the Planning Division on May 22, 2018 (see prior PB 17-06).

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked you are Mr. Mandato?
Mr. James Mandato responded yes.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked you’re going to brief us on what it is that you’re doing. We did get a sketch.


Mr. James Mandato stated really what we’re looking to do is somewhat legalize what we’re already doing. Some of it but not to all of it. There’s a lot of things that are on here that – some of it has to do with safety, some of it has to do with just being in compliance, trying to be a better partner with the town. I guess I can start with A and make my way down if I can remember correctly. In the area of A we had talked about trying to take away some of the space that we now store shopping carts and put a section there where we could possibly put up a small racking area for stockade fencing. The reason for that being is we don’t have a space inside right now so towards the back of the building where the traffic drives very quickly through, that’s where we have to sell it right now so it’s very dangerous. We’re looking for a spot right outside there, neat and organized, with a small rack not taking up any more space than we’re taking up now.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked are there carts there now?

Mr. James Mandato response there are shopping carts there now.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked what happens to them?

Mr. James Mandato responded we would just minimize the number of carts.

Mr. Tom Wood asked and the stockade fence is now where?

Mr. James Mandato responded the stockade fence is now outside on the back of the building near the area of H, in that area.

Mr. Tom Wood asked that’s an approved outdoor display?

Mr. James Mandato responded yes.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so if you move the fencing to the front, and you said on a rack, wouldn’t stockade fencing elevate it?

Mr. James Mandato responded no, no, so the type of racking that we use, it’s almost two U shapes and then it fits inside the You shapes. So they will be standing up not laying down…

Mr. Robert Foley asked so there’s no danger about tipping.

Mr. James Mandato responded no, we actually secure it with a chain across so it wouldn’t be able to tip over.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated what I’m suggesting is—we don’t have an approving resolution for this tonight so we’re going to discuss it tonight, but I think some of the questions, one of the reasons we didn’t come up with an approving resolution is I think there needs to be a little bit more detail. We’re working with you on this so the questions about the racking system, raise all of those questions because then we’ll be talking about you getting us additional details to further explain what it’s going to look like.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated I also just want to piggyback on Chris’s sentiment, just provide a little preface with the Home Depot. Over the past year or so there’s been a lot of back-and-forth and the two current managers have come in and discussed with our code staff, myself included, issues pertaining to the site, outdoor storage etc, so they’re doing their due diligence to clean the property up, as the manager has stated, try to be a good partner with the town and clean up this site as opposed to just bringing outdoor materials. This is the first step in trying to accomplish this. This would be for the temporary displays and then they have been told and instructed to work on a long term plan which would include an updated site plan that would be prepared by a professional to encompass all this proposal, any future outdoor storage making sure that fire access/egress, etc, is properly maintained at all times and that the site is maintained in a clean and a functional manner. With that said, I want to turn it back over.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but one other thing, and I know I can probably speak for Loretta, is that I think the idea of adding additional things to the front of the store has never been something that the Planning Board has really been necessarily in favor of.

Mr. James Mandato stated sure, understandable because you don’t want a bunch of things out there that’s just going to look like clutter.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated having said that, there’s a lot of stuff in front of the store now: the plant materials, and sometimes the flowers.

Mr. Tom Wood stated I find it refreshing you’re here tonight to try to clean it up because I would say for the last 15 years, 20, this has been an ongoing dilemma for us. The board members would probably remember all the plants on the side, that area expanded through.
Mr. James Mandato stated we’re getting there, and I can tell you..

Mr. Tom Wood stated and it the back really, that was approved, there were modifications made to the original approval and that was really an off-load spot that you could unload the trucks, take it and move it into the building over a period of time but the understanding was the materials weren’t going to be permanently, if you will, stored there until somebody bought it. It was just unload the trailer and then over the course of a day or two, get it into your inventory.

Mr. James Mandato stated yes.

Mr. Tom Wood stated so the operation has really outgrown the physical building.

Mr. James Mandato stated it has. 

Mr. Tom Wood stated and now what you’re really trying to do, which is commendable, is to clean up the outside but you’re really trying to expand storage and displays place.

Mr. James Mandato stated expand is actually very little.

Mr. Tom Wood stated it’s a corporate issue.

Mr. James Mandato stated some of it is. We’ve grown. We did 75 million dollars last year. We have grown. The expansion is actually very minimal. Most of the things that are on here are about making our storage better. Really the only type of expansion is areas that we’re already using for the most part, like areas D and C are areas that we already store carts. So if you’ve been to other Home Depots you know in front of the store they will have plant carts with lots of different colored flowers so it’s a really nice presentation. It’s not ripped up bags of mulch. It’s nice flowers that are outside or in-season for fall. There’ll be pumpkins out there, nicely presented. So it’s not really looking for storage, it’s really just added presentation. Yes for us it is added sales but it’s not really so much storage. More of the storage is when we’re getting into the side area and the back of the building. Side area, right there, is where we already use now anyway. What we discussed with Michael, and Chris, and Holly who we worked really close with is actually eliminating those parking spaces and making it an actual temporary storage, depending on our seasonality. Like right now, in our summer season, we have mulches out there. We have soils out there. We understand that we have the drainage areas that need to be kept clear. We would actually like to put a temporary fencing up around there so now it’s an actual storage area not a parking area. So it’s going to even make it safer for our customers too because they see this as a parking area. So sometimes they try to drive in around the mulch where they squeeze their cars in.

Mr. George Kimmerling asked it is a parking area, isn’t it?

Mr. James Mandato responded it is a parking area, yes. It is a parking area but that’s what we’d like to change. The two lines that are up there we’d like to add in speed bumps because customers do still shop on that area where we store flower carts next to the propane that has been approved so that’s what those two lines are there. Because we’re really just thinking about the safety of the people.

Mr. George Kimmerling asked and can people still come around the back? They come down the back.

Mr. James Mandato responded they do come down the back.

Mr. George Kimmerling then they come back up and around. Is that still going to be possible with that storage there?

Mr. James Mandato responded yes, that’s why we have that area clear.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated except there’ll be speed bumps there now.

Mr. James Mandato stated speed bumps would be there.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there are a few there. I came down about three days ago around the back. The whole place back there, it’s wild, it’s crazy.

Mr. James Mandato stated it’s very full and that’s part of the other reason we would – if you go into the G area right now, that’s where we would like to store temporary racking so it’s not inside the store. Sometimes when you have those big metal beams strapped up to a pallet and the overhead can be very dangerous. So we’re trying to keep that neat and organized, stacked outside and if you continue on through the back, we’d like to actually put racking up there so we can get more of the pallets out of that area and out of the loading area and up against the wall. So that would give us less area that we’re using along the side of the building.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one thing that we’re seeing here, and three or four of the planning members were here, all of this is from a previous Planning Board case 17-06 where the Planning Board previously approved these outdoor storage areas to attempt to address some of these issues. It talks about proposed merchandise staging area. I can’t remember if anything was supposed to be built there, like a lean-to or if it was just using those parking spaces to store stuff, but are you storing in that area now?
Mr. James Mandato responded right now we store most of our building material supplies over there: concrete, brick, rock, in that area through pallets. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked can I get back to my original question—when I jumped on you when you said stockade fencing. And you explained in racks but you say it’s not elevated because there is, as you know, the pedestrian traffic in the front, kids, people coming in, wheeling their big stuff out. It’s just dangerous and that’s why my concern is with safety and you did use the word safety a minute ago, especially with anything in the front where there’s a lot of pedestrian traffic in-and-out, pulling up cars, everything.

Mr. James Mandato stated yes sir. Actually my life before being an assistant manager I was an asset protection manager for 10 years with Home Depot so part of my job was the safety of the stores. So I actually helped pilot some of these and other stores and that’s actually how they have them set up. I’ve never seen one fall on somebody.

Mr. Robert Foley stated one of the other questions we had at the work session, what is the carpet caravan tent?

Mr. James Mandato responded that’s actually something that we’ve never been able to do before. It’s just another – something to throw in there…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I’m not sure it’s going to be able to happen this time either.

Mr. James Mandato stated it’s a tent.

Mr. Robert Foley asked is it a tent and they’re going to be selling carpets?

Mr. James Mandato responded it’s a tent that they sell carpets in.

Mr. Robert Foley asked like we see over at the Jefferson Valley Mall?

Mr. James Mandato responded you know I’m not sure about that. I know the store in Hawthorne does one in their parking lot.

Mr. Tom Wood asked is it a seasonal thing?

Mr. James Mandato responded it’s a seasonal thing, yes. It’s a seasonal thing and we don’t even know if we’d be able to get one. In this area we just said what were the possibilities for this area?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated this area here, what you’re saying is there’d be pallet goods for a certain amount of time, Christmas trees for a certain amount of time and then the carpet caravan tent for a certain – so you’d be doing different uses in area E seasonally.

Mr. James Mandato responded yes. The trees are always going to come. The pallets are always going to come. The carpet caravan is something that we don’t actually even know if we’d be able to get one. I was just saying, these are other things that we could possibly use this new staging area for.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated so I think one of the big things that the board has to think about is the idea of fencing all of this parking off and turning it, in essence, in addition to the store and this roadway has to be kept open.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated it does have to be.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated crosswalks, things…

Mr. Tom Wood asked what about all the other merchants who were told there’s no outdoor storage?

Mr. George Kimmerling stated and the reduction in parking.

Mr. James Mandato stated but we looked at the reduction in parking. With the amount of parking that’s actually overflows into the Bed Bath & Beyond parking is our parking.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked can’t you add onto the store in the other direction and leave the road open on the other side?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded it’s funny you should say that, there has been some discussion because I believe one of the spaces going the other direction is vacant. 

Mr. James Mandato stated yes, we’re actually already looking at possibly purchasing that so we could use half of it for a…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated if you’re thinking of closing that off, can’t you move that to the building and leave the road to the bottom part?

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated it would have to be engineered. We’ve had a few meetings with the management of Home Depot, again, our first attempt at this was to evaluate what sort of seasonal storage that they would be requesting, try to work that through the Planning Board with the long term solution of updating the site plan, having a design professional prepare a proper plan to update this site plan so that it’s set in stone on what they can and cannot do on a seasonable level. This is, again, just a first attempt to kind of straighten this out, but there’s a lot of questions, good questions being raised. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked you have to stripe the crossing over from the side of the store to this…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated right, but I guess what Steve is saying is this area would butt up against the building and the car would be going…

Mr. Tom Wood asked is that area going to be for customers to go in or just storage?

Mr. James Mandato responded no, that’s just going to be for storage. We don’t use it for customers now, it’s really just for storage.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked Chris, I assume that eliminating this parking doesn’t affect the requirements for the public…

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded we’ve had preliminary discussions about that. We would confirm that, because don’t forget, Home Depot sits on their own parcel so they…

Mr. Tom Wood stated reciprocal easement.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but they’re not stopped from parking on the other property. But we did – I didn’t understand but they are looking at this site up here too, expanding that way but we had some preliminary discussions. That’s way down the road apparently and it doesn’t really solve these problems.

Mr. James Mandato stated it could possibly solve some of the problems. The thought process right now is – it’s a pretty big space. I did the walkthrough of it, that turning half of it into a tool rental and then using the other half for building materials which would be able to then take some of that product that is stored outside and get it inside. I’m sure most of you shop there. We have a lot of our building materials in the garden section so it’s very confusing for people. So we’re trying to get everything all into the same area as well.

Mr. Robert Foley asked there was actually a structure, an interior between Linens ’N’ Things and Home Depot?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded there’s a wall but there’s been some preliminary discussion with the building people and there may be some issues with that. 

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated it’s a fire separation wall.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked now trucks are not allowed through that area? I know that they utilize it now. Truck deliveries, large…

Mr. James Mandato stated our loading zone – that curve that’s right there, that’s our loading zone.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked so they would continue to utilize that road, wherever, where it’s located…

Mr. Robert Foley asked there’s ample turning radius for them or do they just pull up?

Mr. James Mandato responded yes, there’s plenty of room. There could be times where we could have three trucks waiting. There’s definitely ample turning room.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but the long term discussion, this is an existing curb line, maybe some bigger things need to be engineered and investigated, but I think what we’re getting at though is that the idea of looking at this sort of temporarily approving it while this longer term thing goes on. I don’t know if that’s possible.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated approving some sort of outdoor display storage etc for the next few months as Home Depot prepares an updated and comprehensive site plan for their future proposals for the board to fully vet, for fire staff to fully vet, for code staff to fully vet. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked if we were to approve this, would we do it for a time limited fashion so that we ensure that we get the holistic approach here?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded yes.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated right, and then I do think you probably could have mentioned this before, but I do think we need, for the July meeting, maybe some photographs of other areas – some idea of what it will look like.

Mr. James Mandato stated I can definitely provide that.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated to help them to decide.

Mr. James Mandato stated absolutely.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you know, the pallet storage, and the stockade fence storage, and things like that.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated some ideas about how the enclosure would look on that side parking spot, the area. If you’re actually going to enclose it, what does that mean? Is it chain link?

Mr. James Mandato responded most likely chain link.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated I think the enclosure in area F is a longer term because that’s something that needs to be vetted by the code staff, because you’re now expanding the use to the building. You’re going to be potentially having more individuals occupy the space, so it needs to be fully vetted out. The outdoor storage displays is more of what we were anticipating as the short term solution. If it’s a seasonal planting display or pumpkins, Christmas trees, etc, it’s one thing but if it’s going to be covered storage or racking, that needs to be looked at to make sure fire access is still there and it’s accessible, etc.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so that means that that tent that you would ordinarily you’d want to put right over there, is something that we don’t have to consider at this point.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated well he may come back and show you a tent unless you tell him right now not even to do it.

Mr. James Mandato stated in truth, that was just something that we threw in there because we were thinking what else could we use the space for? In reality, we’re thinking about safety. We’re thinking about being in code compliance. The tent is not really a necessary thing. It’s more about making this a safer area, making it an actual storage area. That was just an added thing that we threw in there as a possibility.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated from code officer’s perspective, we’re trying to get the debris, the pallets away from the building, away from the emergency access doors, put them in a centralized location that can be maintained, kept and cleaned, not necessarily looking to expand the use of the building for future materials, etc. That’s a more macroscopic review that the Planning Board has to undertake.

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we refer this back to staff. 

Seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just in addition to referring it back that does obviously, this doesn’t mean we just wait until July 10th and have this discussion again on July 10th. We’ll have to have some meetings, staff level meetings to get ready for that meeting. 

Mr. James Mandato stated great, excellent.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that’s usually what referring back.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I know. I’m just making sure that we realize it.

Mr. James Mandato stated a lot easier for me. I’m new at this. Thank you very much folks. I appreciate your time.

With all in favor saying "aye". 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated find something else to put in that space.

PB 2018-10  d. Application of New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC (AT&T) for a Special Permit to co-locate a wireless facility on an existing telecommunications tower facility located at 260 Croton Avenue as described in a letter and packet dated May 23, 2018 from Christopher B. Fisher and as shown on a 15 page set of drawings entitled “260 Croton Avenue” prepared by Philip A. Burtner, P.E. latest revision dated April 26, 2018.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you just want to quickly tell us what you’re doing.
Mr. Tony Gioffre stated good evening again. For the record my name is Tony Gioffre member of the law firm Cuddy & Feder, 445 Hamilton Avenue, White Plains, NY on behalf of the applicant New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC better known as AT&T Wireless. This application seeks to co-locate a wireless telecommunication facility at 260 Croton Avenue on an existing 140 foot tower that currently services the needs of Verizon. Verizon has its antenna already at the 130 foot level and at the base of the tower is a 36 x 40 foot fence compound which also houses Verizon’s associated equipment. AT&T is seeking to co-locate on the existing tower by placing 12 antennas on an array at 120 feet, 10 foot of separation below Verizon, and put its equipment cabinets within the existing fenced compound within an 8 x 8 area. We’ve provided documentation materials which identify the AT&T has a gap in coverage. We would be able to provide a 2 ½ mile stretch along Croton Avenue, a 1 ½ mile stretch on Maple Avenue, a 1 ½ mile stretch on Hunter Brook Road and the surrounding ancillary roads in the vicinity. We provided a cumulative emissions analysis which demonstrates that this facility will comply with all federal guidelines for RF emissions and would be over a hundred times less than most threshold promulgated by the FCC. We also provided some documentation materials that indicate that this is an eligible facility as deemed by the FCC which identifies that this is a co-location of new transmission equipment pursuant to section 6409 of the middle class tax relief act. This eligible’s facilities request does also comply with the requirements for a 6409 EFR in that it will not constitute a substantial change. It will not increase the height of the tower. The proposed permits will not extend beyond the edges of the tower by more than 20 feet and the equipment will be located in the fenced compound and it will not involve excavation outside the fenced compound. That’s a summary of the proposal. I’d be happy to answer any questions you do have. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked do we have any questions on the board? Does staff have any comments?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated no I think it’s similar to the last one the conditions are all associated with building permit issues.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we have a resolution for you.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion to approve resolution 18-18.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Tony Gioffre stated thank you very much and I’d like to thank Mr. Preziosi, Mr. Kehoe, and Mr. Wood. Thank you very much.

Mr. Tom Wood stated you have to work with Chris to get both your applications at the same time.

*



*



*
ADJOURNMENT

Mr. George Kimmerling stated Madame Chair it’s 9:20 p.m. and I propose that we adjourn.  



*



*



*
Next Meeting: TUESDAY, JULY 10, 2018
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